
AGENDA FOR

LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL

Contact:: Nicole Tilly, Democratic Services
Direct Line: 0161 253 5398
E-mail: n.l.tilly@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Licensing and Safety Panel

Councillors : P Adams, N Bayley, I Bevan, J Grimshaw, 
R Hodkinson, D Jones (Chair), G Keeley, J Kelly, 
O Kersh, A McKay, Sarah Southworth, J Walker and 
S Wright

Dear Member/Colleague

Licensing and Safety Panel

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel 
which will be held as follows:-

Date: Thursday, 20 April 2017

Place: Meeting Rooms A & B - Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

Notes:



AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of the Licensing and Safety Panel are asked to consider whether 
they have an interest in any of the matters on the agenda, and if so, to 
formally declare that interest.  

3  MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 10)

Minutes of the last meeting held on 7 March 2017 are attached.

4  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

Questions are invited from members of the public present at the meeting 
on any matters for which this Panel is responsible.

Approximately 30 minutes will be set aside for Public Question Time if 
required.

5  OPERATIONAL REPORT  (Pages 11 - 14)

6  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

To consider passing the appropriate resolution under section 100 (A)(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 that the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of the following item of business 
since it involves the likely disclosure of the exempt information stated.

7  SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF HACKNEY DRIVERS LICENCES  
(Pages 15 - 24)

8  APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE LICENCE  
(Pages 25 - 30)

9  URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business, which by reason of special circumstances, the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



397

Minutes of: LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL

Date of Meeting: 7 March 2017

Present: Councillor D Jones (in the Chair), 
Councillors: P Adams, N Bayley, J 
Grimshaw, I Bevan, G Keeley, A McKay,  O 
Kersh, Sarah Southworth, J Walker and  S 
Wright  

     
Apologies for absence: Councillors R Hodkinson and J Kelly

Public Attendance: There were no members of the public in 
attendance

___________________________________________________________________

Councillor Jones thanked Councillor Kelly for chairing the previous meeting of the 
Licensing and Safety Panel in his absence.

LSP. 567 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest raised in relation to any items on 
the agenda.

LSP. 568 MINUTES

Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the Licensing and Safety Panel meeting held on 19 
January 2017, be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

 
LSP. 569 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no questions raised under this item.

LSP. 570 OPERATIONAL REPORT

The Assistant Director (Localities) submitted a report advising Members 
on operational issues within the Licensing Service.

The report set out updates in respect of the following issues:

 Pre-application assessments are continuing to be undertaken by the 
adult learning team.  From 4 January 2017 until 17 February there 
have been 47 assessments booked, of which 32 passed, 13 failed and 
2 failed to attend.

 In relation to an immediate suspension of a private hire driver, 
following information from Greater Manchester Police of a serious 
assault on 27 January 2017.  The driver in question has handed in his 
driver’s badge and will be suspended pending the outcome of the 
Police investigation into the assault.

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 3



398

Licensing and Safety Panel, 7 March 2017

 In relation to an application for a Summary Review from Greater 
Manchester Police in respect of the Alt House, Moss Lane, Whitefield, 
in connection with serious crime and/or serious disorder, a Licensing 
Hearings Panel was convened on 10 February 2017 and on 
consideration of the evidence, members imposed interim steps which 
resulted in the premises licence being suspended pending the full 
review on 6 March 2017.

The Chair of the Licensing and Safety Panel informed the Committee 
that following the full review, which he also chaired, the Premises 
Licence for the Alt House had been revoked. 

It was agreed:

That the report be noted.

LSP.571 URGENT BUSINESS

There was no urgent business reported.  

LSP.572 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Delegated decision:

That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business since it involved the 
likely disclosure of information relating to individuals who hold Licences 
granted by the Authority or Applicants for Licences provided by the 
Authority.

LSP.573 CONSIDERATION OF DRIVER SUITABILIITY TO WORK ON THE 
HOME TO SCHOOL AND COLLEGE TRANSPORT CONTRACT

(E) Mrs Nicola Hudson, Transport/Contract Supervisor, of the School and 
College Transport Team, presented a report submitted by the Director of 
Children’s Services in relation to the suitability of an individual Public 
Service Vehicle (PSV) driver to authorise them to work on a home to 
school contract.

Passengers using the Service have a range of additional needs including 
learning, behavioural, sensory, hearing, visual, autistic disorder or 
physical disabilities and escorts are allocated to accompany pupils on 
their journey to and from school where required.  

A report was considered on 6 October 2014 in relation to the Licensing 
and Safety Panel undertaking a review of PSV drivers working on School 
and College transport contracts when a caution or conviction is disclosed 
on their enhanced DBS certificate. Members resolved that the Panel 
would become the single reviewing body for such applications and the 
relevant delegation was amended, so as to enable it to determine if such 
applicants were ‘fit and proper’.

Document Pack Page 2



399

Licensing and Safety Panel, 7 March 2017

In relation to the current driver, an application was made for an 
enhanced DBS on 27 September 2016 which showed a conviction dated 
12 December 2007, in relation to racially aggravated assault by beating 
on 24 February 2007.  The Applicant was convicted on 12 December 
2007 at Bolton Crown Court and sentenced to unpaid work requirement.

The Applicant attended the meeting, accompanied by their employer and 
explained to the Panel that the incident had occurred 10years ago but 
that the offence of racially aggravated assault by beating was an 
exaggerated explanation of what actually happened.  On the night in 
question, the Applicant had fallen at home and had to go to hospital for 
treatment. They had been put in a side ward and the nurse treating 
them had made a comment when asked who was in the bed, ‘oh, just 
another drunk’.  The Applicant was very unhappy with this comment as 
they were not drunk and had challenged the nurse about the comment 
and stated they did not want to be treated by her.  

The Applicant explained that whilst trying to get off the bed their foot 
had caught the hip of the nurse but no physical contact had been 
intended.  The Applicant felt that the nurse was trying to cover up for 
her previous statement and had then called Security making an 
allegation that she had kicked with intent.

The Applicant admitted being angry at this time and had called the nurse 
a ‘sly person’ and then a ‘paki’ but regretted this and was very 
remorseful but it was the heat of the moment in the chain of events.

The Applicant explained that they had eventually pleaded guilty due to 
the costs involved and the time taken off work and had been given a 12 
month suspended sentence, ordered to pay £500 compensation and had 
undertaken Community Service.

The Applicant stated that they really wanted this employment and felt 
that the punishment already served outweighed the actual incident.

Delegated decision:

The Panel carefully considered the report and the oral representations 
by the Applicant and taking into account the Council’s Conviction Policy 
and Guidelines and resolved, unanimously, that the Applicant was 
suitable to work as a PSV driver on the home to School and 
College transport contract and therefore the application was 
allowed.

The Licensing and Safety Panel noted that although the conviction itself 
was December 2007 and just under the 10 year condition, the offence 
itself was just over 10 years ago, and that the Applicant was remorseful 
for their actions at that time and therefore agreed unanimously that the 
driver was a suitable person.

Document Pack Page 3



400

Licensing and Safety Panel, 7 March 2017

LSP.574 SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE 
HIRE DRIVERS’ LICENCES

Licence Holders 03/2017 and 04/2017 were invited into the meeting 
together at their specific request.  Licence holder 03/2017 was 
represented by Mr G Bridge, License Holder 04/2017 was unrepresented 
and both were accompanied by their partners.

The Chair asked each Licence Holder individually and Mr G Bridge if they 
were in agreement to have the hearing in each other’s company and 
they indicated that they were content that this was the best way to 
conduct the meeting. It was explained that the licence holders were 
second cousins and the incident in question had been resolved following 
a family gathering.  

The Chair outlined the procedure to be followed and the Licensing Unit 
Manager presented a summarised report submitted by the Assistant 
Director (Localities) on the proposed suspension of the Private Hire 
Drivers’ Licences. 

The Licence Holders were before the Licensing and Safety Panel 
following a violent altercation between both drivers on 5 February 2017.

The Licensing and Safety Panel were then showed CCTV footage of the 
altercation which took place on Silver Street in Bury Town Centre.

Mr G Bridge then addressed the Panel on behalf of Licence Holder 
03/2017 explaining that the drivers were second cousins and there was 
a strong family connection.  This Licence Holder was working for a local 
taxi firm and their second cousin had started to work for them also but 
it hadn’t worked out and had left to work with a different operator. This 
had caused some issues within the family.

On 5 February 2017, Licence Holder 03/2017 had stopped their vehicle 
on Silver Street whilst dropping passengers.  The vehicle then caused an 
obstruction on the road. It was a rainy night and the passengers had 
asked to be dropped off directly outside Brambles and the Licence 
Holder had felt obliged to do this which then caused the obstruction.

Licence Holder 04/2017 had then arrived and had been unable to get 
passed and words were exchanged.  Licence Holder 03/2017 had then 
got out of their vehicle and approached 04/2017 on the driver’s side and 
opened the door.  The CCTV showed the footage of Licence Holder 
04/2017 then hitting 03/2017 who then returned to their vehicle, 
realised their glasses had come off and returned to find them.  Another 
brief altercation took place and then both drivers move off.  Mr G Bridge 
stated that at no time did Licence Holder 03/2017 use any violence.  
Licence Holder 03/2017 reported the incident to the Police as he had an 
eye injury and was treated at hospital.  Since having reported the 
incident, the complaint has since been withdrawn and Greater 
Manchester Police has not had any involvement.

Document Pack Page 4



401

Licensing and Safety Panel, 7 March 2017

Mr G Bridge then referred to a previous warning given to Licence Holder 
03/2017 on 6 March 2013, relating to a road rage incident involving a 
member of the public and explained that Licence Holder 03/2017 was 
approaching a zebra crossing, again on Silver Street and had a slow 
speed collision with a pedestrian.  The Police were involved but there 
was no conviction and the Licence Holder had subsequently attended a 
driver improvement course.  

Mr G Bridge then distributed a character reference from the Licence 
Holder’s current employer and also a screen shot of the mobile phone of 
licence holder 04/2017 to 03/2017 stating he was ‘really really sorry’ for 
what had happened. 

Mr G Bridge explained to the Panel that Licence Holder 03/2017 had 5 
children and their partner works part time, however they provide the 
main income and the suspension was having an impact on their 
finances. The Licence Holder had held a licence for 14 years.

The Chair then asked Licence Holder 04/2017 to address the Panel and 
the Licence Holder stated how sorry they are.  The Licence Holder’s 
partner explained that both families had since met regarding this matter 
and had completely resolved their issues.  They were a large and very 
close family and this was a very big thing for them all and completely 
out of character for them.  They have 3 children.  Licence Holder 
04/2017 now drives for another taxi firm and again any action would 
have a significant impact on their finances.

Various questions were asked of both Licence Holders from members of 
the Licensing and Safety Panel.

Delegated decision:

1. The Panel carefully considered the report and the oral 
representations by Licence Holder 03/2017, their representative 
Mr G Bridge and partner and taking into account the Council’s 
Conviction Policy and Guidelines and in accordance with the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and resolved, 
unanimously, to suspend Licence Holder 03/2017 for a 
period of 2 months and attend the Council’s driving 
standards course prior to the end of this period.  

The Panel noted that this was a very serious matter.  Although 
this Licence Holder had not actually hit 04/2017, they were the 
instigator of the altercation.  Also, the Panel were very concerned 
that the Licence Holder had shown no consideration to 
passengers and the surrounding public in dropping them off in an 
unmarked bay area, causing an obstruction to other road users 
and then by leaving the vehicle to approach Licence Holder 
04/2017, causing a serious problem on an already busy street.  
The Panel’s role includes a consideration of the safety of the 
public which the Panel felt this Licence Holder had shown no 

Document Pack Page 5



402

Licensing and Safety Panel, 7 March 2017

concern for.  Further, the Panel noted that other members of the 
public were seen on the CCTV separating the two individuals and 
felt it unacceptable for two Licence Holders to be fighting in the 
streets. However, the Panel took into consideration the 
circumstances of Licence Holder 03/2017 and their family, that 
both families had resolved the feud between them and that the 
complaint to the Police and the Licensing Office had been 
withdrawn. It also noted the remorse and apologies from Licence 
Holder 03/2017.

The Applicant was informed of his right of appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days.

2. The Panel carefully considered the report and the oral 
representations by Licence Holder 04/217 and their partner and 
taking into account the Council’s Conviction Policy and guidelines 
and in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and resolved, 

unanimously, to suspend Licence Holder 04/2017 for a period of 2 
months and attend the Council’s driving standards course prior 
to the end of this period.

The Panel noted that this incident was very serious and such an act of
aggression could not be tolerated.  Although this Licence Holder was not 
the instigator of the altercation, they had shown no concern to any of 
the members of public whilst alighting from the vehicle in order to 
repeatedly punch Licence Holder 03/2017.  Further, the Panel noted 
that other members of the public were seen on the CCTV separating the 
two individuals and felt it unacceptable for two Licence Holders to be 
fighting in the streets. However, the Licence Holder and their partner 
had explained the circumstances of the feud between the two Licence 
Holders and that this was now resolved.  The Panel took into 
consideration the circumstances of Licence Holder, the impact on their 
family if 04/2017 and that they were very remorseful and apologised for 
their actions generally and to Licence Holder 03/2017.

The Applicant was informed of his right of appeal to the Magistrates’ 
Court within 21 days.

LSP.575 APPLICATIONS FOR PUBLIC/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS’ LICENCES

The Licensing Unit Manager presented a report submitted by the 
Assistant Director (Localities) regarding applications for Public/Private 
Hire Vehicles Drivers’ Licences.

The Applicants were invited to attend the meeting for separate hearings
and the Chair outlined the procedure to be followed.  The Applicants 
were invited to address the Panel separately on their applications and 
any matters referred to in the Officer’s report.  

Document Pack Page 6



403

Licensing and Safety Panel, 7 March 2017

1. Applicant 05/2017 attended the meeting and was represented by 
Mr Ahmed, Solicitor.  The Licensing Unit Manager read the report 
which was accepted by the Applicant and their Solicitor which 
explained that the Applicant had been convicted at Greater 
Manchester Magistrates’ Court on 19 July 2016 (postponed from 
12 July 2016) for failing to provide a specimen for analysis and 
had been fined £325 and his DVLA Licence endorsed with 10 
penalty points with costs of £225 and victim surcharge of £32.  
The Applicant had previously held both Private Hire and Hackney 
Carriage Driver Licences until 4 September 2016.

The Applicant’s Solicitor addressed the Panel and explained that 
on the date of the offence, 15 March 2016, the Applicant had 
been picked up in a car, by a friend, near to where they live.  The 
Applicant got in the vehicle having drunk alcohol, but did not 
realise that the friend only had a provisional driving licence.  The 
car was stopped by Police and the Applicant, being classed as in 
charge of the vehicle, was asked to provide a sample which the 
Applicant refused and was subsequently taken to the Police 
station.  The Applicant wrongly thought they could seek legal 
advice prior to giving a sample which was the reason for the 
refusal. It was accepted that this was not an excuse for the 
Applicant’s behaviour but a reason why the offence was 
committed.  The Applicant had now had to move back home with 
parents due to financial implications and hadn’t worked for 4 
months.

The Applicant also addressed the Panel and explained that the 
initial conviction date of 12 July 2016 had been moved to 19 July 
2016 due to the Applicant having a tooth infection and being 
unable to attend.  
The Applicant stated they would not have got in the car had they 
known the driver had only a provisional licence as they would not 
have jeopardised their licence with Bury Council.  This was the 
Applicant’s 
profession and they really needed a licence to work.

Delegated decision:

The Panel carefully considered the report and the oral 
representations by the Applicant and after taking into account the 
Council’s Conviction Policy and Guidelines and in accordance with 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and 
resolved, unanimously, that the application for a Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence by Applicant 05/2017 be granted.

The Panel acknowledged that failure to provide a specimen was a 
serious offence, however, the Applicant was genuine in the 
explanation as to why they had initially been in the car with a 
driver who was driving on a provisional licence and then 
subsequently refused to provide a sample.  The Panel agreed that 

Document Pack Page 7



404

Licensing and Safety Panel, 7 March 2017

the Applicant was remorseful for their actions and that they were 
a fit and proper person to be granted a licence in Bury.

2. Applicant 06/2017 attended the meeting and was 
unaccompanied.  The Licensing Unit Manager read the report, 
which was repeatedly interrupted by the Applicant arguing that 
the information was incorrect throughout.  The Chair asked the 
Applicant to allow the Licensing Unit Manager to finish the report 
and then address any issues after.

The Applicant then explained that at the time of the convictions 
for offences connected with the supply of drugs in 2007, they 
were young and naive.  In relation to the offence for possession 
of cannabis in November 2010, the Applicant stated that they had 
allowed a friend to smoke cannabis in their vehicle, who had left 
behind two hand rolled cigarettes containing cannabis.  The 
Applicant had then been stopped by Police and the drugs found.  
The Applicant had been convicted at Bury Magistrates’ Court on 
22 November 2010 and fined £65 plus costs of £85 and victim 
surcharge of £15.

In relation to an offence of common assault offence on 23 March 
2016, for which the Applicant had received a caution from Greater 
Manchester Police, the Applicant stated this was not a fight but an 
argument with a cousin in Bury Town Centre, whom the Applicant 
had pushed and the cousin had reported the incident to the 
Police.

In relation to an offence of racially/religiously aggravated 
intentional harassment/alarm/distress-words/writing on 28 
November 2016, for which the Applicant was convicted at Greater 
Manchester Courts on 16 December 2016 and sentenced to 
community order until 15 December 2017 with costs of £85 and 
compensation of £100 and unpaid work requirement victim 
surcharge of £85, the Applicant explained that this was in respect 
of having two vehicles registered in their name; one of the 
vehicles being driven by the Applicants partner who had lost the 
MOT certificate which had subsequently expired.  Due to the 
vehicle not having a valid MOT, DVLA did not send a reminder for 
this vehicle to be taxed which had then also expired. As a result 
the DVLA took action an authorised Officer clamped the 
Applicant’s vehicle outside their home. The Applicant stated that 
they had just woken up and was angry at the clamping and the 
fact that the Officer was ‘smirking’.  The Applicant denied using 
any language in relation to race or religion but stated the Officer 
was a ‘pork pie eater’.  The Applicant stated that they had since 
apologised to the Officer.

The Applicant explained that they were from a decent family and 
their Father had worked all his life.  The Applicant has three 
children to provide for and currently is a part time delivery driver 
for a Chinese takeaway working nights, however, a Private Hire 

Document Pack Page 8



405

Licensing and Safety Panel, 7 March 2017

Vehicle licence would allow more flexibility with working hours 
and enable them to provide for their family.

The Applicant apologised for being disrespectful to the Panel and 
Officers of the Council but stated they were frustrated that they 
had already paid out so much for the licence.  The Applicant went 
on to state that if the licence was not granted they would not 
apply for a licence again but wanted a refund for the money 
already paid to the Council.  The Chair explained the process was 
the same for every prospective licence holder.

Delegated decision:

The Panel carefully considered the report and the oral 
representations by the Applicant and after taking into account the 
Council’s Conviction Policy and Guidelines and in accordance with 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and 
resolved, unanimously, that the application for a Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence by Applicant 06/2017 be refused.

The Panel agreed that these were very serious offences and 
although the convictions for the drugs offences were almost over 
10 years, the Applicant’s attitude was rude, aggressive and very 
challenging, both towards Council staff and the Panel itself.  The 
Panel felt that the Applicant showed no perception of his manner 
or behaviour and took no apparent responsibility for his actions. 
The safety of the public is paramount and the Panel felt that the 
Applicant demonstrated a lack of ability to control his temper and 
was therefore not satisfied that he qualified as a fit and proper 
person to be driving the public in a private hire vehicle in Bury 
with such volatile behaviour.

The Applicant was informed of his right of appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days.

  

COUNCILLOR D JONES
CHAIR
(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00 pm and finished at 9.45 pm)

Document Pack Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION OF: LICENSING & SAFETY PANEL

DATE: 20th APRIL 2017

SUBJECT: OPERATIONAL REPORT  

REPORT FROM: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LOCALITIES)

CONTACT OFFICER: M BRIDGE

TYPE OF DECISION:
 
N/A – Report for information only

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: This paper is in the public domain

SUMMARY: A report to advise members on operational issues within 
the licensing service.

IMPLICATIONS:

Wards Affected: N/A

Scrutiny Interest: Internal Scrutiny Panel

1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 The report advises Members on operational issues within the licensing service.

2.0 PRE-APPLICATION ASSESSMENTS

2.1 Further to the last meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel. The Licensing 
Service can confirm that the assessments are continuing to be undertaken by 
the adult learning team. From the 17th February 2017 until the 31st March 2017 
there has been 31 assessments carried out. Of the 31 assessments that were 
booked, 27 passed, 4 failed and no-one failed to attend.   

3.0 PURPLE FLAG EXTERNAL ASSESSMENT

3.1 On the 18th March 2017, Officers of the Council including licensing staff took 
part in the external Purple Flag renewal assessment with two assessors from 
ATCM (Association of Town Centre Managers). The Council will be notified in 
May 2017 of the decision for the renewal application.

1

Agenda
Item

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 11 Agenda Item 5



4.0 HACKNEY CARRIAGE – TRANSISTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS  

4.1 Members will recall that at the meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel on the 
8th May 2014 regarding the Review of current policies relating to the licensing 
and testing of Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles. One of the issues 
considered was the ‘5 fault rule’ it was reported that complaints had been 
received from the Hackney Carriage Drivers’ Association stating that the current 
policy was unfair and discriminatory because it does not also apply to Private 
Hire vehicles of the same age. Members resolved the following:-

Delegated decision:

 That the “exceptional condition” criteria be re-introduced for Hackney 
Carriages at 10 years and as an incentive to encourage proactive 
maintenance and provide for additional testing requirements where vehicles 
fall below acceptable standards.

 That further to (1) above, existing licence holders be allowed a 3 year 
transitional period should they have made financial plans in respect of their 
vehicle to allow them to be licensed subject to the ”5 fault rule”

The transitional arrangements for the Hackney Carriage fleet come to an end on 
the 1st June 2017. 

5.0 IMMIGRATION ACT 2016 – IMPLICATIONS ON THE LICENSING ACT 
2003

5.1 The Immigration Act 2016 has introduced measures to prevent illegal working 
in the alcohol and late night refreshment sector. The provisions commence in 
England and Wales on the 6th April 2017.  A Summary of the new measures are 
as follows:

 Personal & premises licences cannot be issued to those 
disqualified by their immigration status. 

 Licences issued on or after 6 April 2017 will lapse if the 
holder’s lawful leave or permission to work ends. 

 The Home Office’s Secretary of State will be added to the list of 
responsible authorities. 

 Immigration Officers will have powers to enter premises to 
investigate whether immigration offences are being committed 
in connection with licensable activities. 

5.2 From the 6 April 2017, licensing authorities will be required to check the 
eligibility to work for all those applying for personal licences and premises 
licensed for the sale of alcohol and late night refreshment. 

The new provisions mean that licences must not be issued to disqualified 
persons, who are: 

• Unlawfully present in the UK, 

• Not permitted to work, or 

• Permitted to work, but not in this licensable activity. 

2

Document Pack Page 12



An application from a person disqualified on these grounds is invalid and must 
be rejected. 

5.3 For all personal & premises licence applications made on or after 6 April 
2017, you must be satisfied that the applicant’s immigration status does not 
disqualify them from holding a licence before the licence is issued. 

Key Points 

 Licence application forms have been updated to allow the 
applicant to provide their date of birth, nationality and 
evidence of eligibility to work. 

 A list of acceptable documents to demonstrate eligibility 
to work has been included within the forms. 

 The applicant must submit copies of their acceptable 
documents within the application. 

 The Licensing Authority will need to check that the 
documents provided demonstrate that the applicant is 
eligible to work in the licensable activity. 

The Licensing Service received the Home Office Guidance on the 5th April. 
Licensing Staff have now implemented the requirements relating to the 
Immigration Act 2016.

6.0 Equality Act 2010

6.1 The Equality Act 2010, sections 165 and 167 come into effect on the 6th 
April 2017.  The Licensing Service are currently working on the 
implementation of the requirements, further updates to the panel may 
come in due course.

6.2 Section 165 requires drivers of wheelchair accessible vehicles to carry 
passengers in wheelchairs, provide assistance to those passengers and 
prohibits them from charging extra. The requirements of section 165 do 
not apply to drivers who have a valid exemption certificate and are 
displaying a valid exemption notice. Exemption certificates will be issued 
to those drivers who on medical grounds or because of the drivers 
physical condition makes it impossible or unreasonably difficult for them 
to comply with those duties.

6.3 Section 167 provides Local Authorities the power to make lists of 
wheelchair accessible vehicles. The Act refers to them as “designated 
vehicles”.

3

Document Pack Page 13



7.0 Statistics of the Licensing Service

7.1 The Licensing Service during the financial year 15/16 have dealt with the 
following:-

Type of Work Number

Number of Licences/Registrations/Consents/Permits  
processed

5969 – Increase of 277 
on last year.

Number of applicants/Licence holders considered by 
the Licensing and Safety Panel

Suspension / Revocation / Admonishment - 6

New Applicants – 

11 Granted

11 Refused

28

Number of applications considered by Licensing 
Hearing Panels

Of these:-

Variation application - 1

Review application – 1 local resident

Reviews –  4 Greater Manchester Police

Reviews – 1 Trading Standards

Expedited Reviews – 1 (two hearings interim steps 
and full review)

9

Contact Details:
M Bridge
Licensing Unit Manager
3 Knowsley Place
Duke Street
Bury
BL9 0EJ Tel: 0161 253 5209   Email: m.bridge@bury.gov.uk

4

Document Pack Page 14

mailto:m.bridge@bury.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Document Pack Page 15 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Document Pack Page 25 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	5 OPERATIONAL REPORT
	7 SUSPENSION/REVOCATION OF HACKNEY DRIVERS LICENCES
	8 APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE LICENCE

